
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 09/15/15 
             Item No.: 1 
 
Recommendation: That the Board accepts the recommendation of the Utilities Committee and approves 
Resolution No. 315-091515 Establishing Various Rates and Charges for Wastewater Service. 
 
Background: An analysis of wastewater rates was performed by utilities staff in order to update the cost of 
service to customers. The utility staff spent many hours verifying values and allocations. The Utilities 
Committee discussed the study, the proposed 2015 rates were approved unanimously by the committee.  
 
The Utilities Committee intends to review sewer rates annually at budget time. 
 
There are two attachments to this Board report: 
 Resolution 315  
 Recommended Sewer Rates for 2015  
   
   
Fiscal Impact: The 2015 Sewer Rate Study concluded that the utilities will realize an increase of revenue of 

$58,470.00 over the next twelve months assuming the rates go into effect on October 1, 2015 and 
are payable in the 4th quarter.  

 
 The fixed charges for metered customers will increase by an average of 5.12%. 
 
 The volume charges for metered customers will decrease by an average of 2.79%. 
 
 Charges for unsewered users inside the Village of Sister Bay and the Town of Liberty Grove will in-

crease for holding tank by 32.56% and for septage by 10.84%. 
 
 Charges for unsewered users outside the Village of Sister Bay and the Town of Liberty Grove will in-

crease for holding tank by 20.57% and for septage by 6.87%. 
 
Water rates are not changing at this time. The utility rate studies alternate years.  This is due for review 
again in 2017. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 

18

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


19



20



21



22



Resolution No. 315-091515 
Establishing Various Rates and Charges for Wastewater Service 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Utilities Committee of the Village of Sister Bay has reviewed the 2015 Sewer Rate Study Report 
prepared by the staff, and 
 
WHEREAS, at a meeting on November 1, 2011 the Utilities Committee recommended a biannual review of the 
rates, and 
 
WHEREAS, at meetings on August 4, 2015, the Utilities Committee discussed the needs for a sound financial 
base for the wastewater utility, and 
 
WHEREAS, at the August 4, 2015 meeting, the Utilities Committee did recommend approval of the attached  
rate schedule. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin that the 
attached rate schedule dated August 4, 2015 is hereby approved as permitted under Section § 62.9 of the Mu-
nicipal Code of the Village. 
 
FURTHER that a copy of this rate schedule shall be provided to all system customers.  
 
FURTHER that the new rate schedule shall go into effect on September 15, 2015.  
 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 15th day of  
September 2015. 
 
 
Passed and adopted this ___ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
          _____________________________________ 
          David W. Lienau, President 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________     VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk WCPC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 09/15/15 
             Item No.: 2 
 
Recommendation: That the Board accepts the recommendation of the Utilities Committee and approves 
Ordinance No. 239-091515 AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 109-050405 and ORDINANCE 113-102505, 
ESTABLISHING AN IMPACT FEE FOR A WATER SYSTEM AND RELATED IMPROVEMENTS. 
 
Background: On discussion of the Utilities Committee, a number of possible “system pressurizing” im-
provements could be made to address lack of water pressure in parts of our Water Utility.  The 2006 ena-
bling ordinance for impact fees specifies that a “Water Tower and Related System Improvements” probabily 
should have read “Water Tower OR Related System Improvements”.  The distinction is, while in spirit a 
pressurizing device is needed, the ordinance was strict in naming  a “water tower” as the type of pressuriz-
ing improvement.   
 
Pressure testing cannot be undertaken until a loop is in place following the SCAND additions, with even 
more data becoming available following the planned Stony Ridge Development.   
 
This amendment will give the Utility Committee, Board, Staff, and Engineers some flexibility in future sys-
tem design, without restricting the improvement to a Water Tower.  Possible improvements may include a 
well, ground tank, or booster pump stations which would fulfill a similar role. 
 
There are two attachments to this Board report: 
 Ordinance 339  
 Notice of posting  
   
   
Fiscal Impact: Will allow capital costs to be born by new users to the water system, essentially addressing 

problems generated by adding users to the system.  Ultimate financial impact is unknown at this 
time. 

 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 

24

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


25



 
ORDINANCE NO. 239-091515 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 109-050405 and ORDINANCE 113-102505, ES-

TABLISHING AN IMPACT FEE FOR A WATER SYSTEM AND RELATED IMPROVEMENTS 
 
SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, upon recommendation of the Utilities com-
mittee conducted a public hearing on October 20, 2005 on the need for a water tower and system im-
provements impact fees; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, upon recommendation of the Utilities 
Committee, conducted a public hearing on this amendment on September 15, 2015; and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, Door County, Wisconsin, do or-
dain as follows: 
 
SECTION 2.00 INTENT 
This Ordinance is enacted to establish the mechanism for the imposition of impact fees upon develop-
ment to finance the capital costs of acquiring, establishing, upgrading, expanding, and constructing pub-
lic facilities which are necessary to accommodate such development. This Ordinance is intended to as-
sure that development bears an appropriate share of the cost of capital expenditures necessary to provide 
such public facilities within the Village of Sister Bay and its service areas as are required to serve the 
needs arising out of development, as well as to comply with Sec. 66.0617 Wis. Stats. As provided in Sec. 
66.0617(2)(b), Wis. Stats., the Village of Sister Bay, by adopting this Ordinance, is not intending to limit 
its authority to finance public facilities by any other means authorized by law. 
 
SECTION 3.00 AUTHORITY 
This Ordinance is enacted under the authority granted by Section 66.0617(2)(a), of the Wisconsin Stat-
utes. 
 
SECTION 4.00 JURISDICTION 
The jurisdictional area of this Ordinance shall include all lands within the corporate limits of the Village 
of Sister Bay.  
 
SECTION 5.00 CREATION OF MUNICIPAL CODE PROVISIONS 
The following provisions are hereby created and incorporated into the Municipal Code of the Village of 
Sister Bay: 

 
SECTION 62.22 DOCUMENTATION is not amended 
 

26



 2 

SECTION 62.24 TIME LIMIT FOR EXPENDITURES is amended to read: 
“(a)2.  Water System Improvements, From January 1, 2006 through December 31, 2021.” 
 
“(b)2. Type of facility: Water System improvements, December 2026” 
 
SECTION 62.28 IMPACT FEE is amended to read: 
“(b)  The Water System improvement impact fee for every residential meter equivalent is 
$1478.00” 

 
SECTION 5.01 SCOPE 
The phrase “water system and related improvements” shall mean the water system and related improve-
ments potentially including, but not limited to: a water tower, cistern, well, pumps, pipes or other water 
related infrastructure that would be deemed necessary by the Village Board of Trustees to improve the 
Water System. 
 
SECTION 6.00 SEVERABILITY 
If any section or part of this Ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. All other ordinances or parts of 
ordinances of the Village inconsistent with this Ordinance to the extent of the inconsistency only are 
hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 7.00 EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall be effective after adoption by the Board of Trustees and publication or posting as 
provided by law. 
 
Note that this ordinance was published in the Door County Advocate as a Class II notice. 
 
Dated this 15th day of September 2015 
 
     Village of Sister Bay 
 
     By:  _____________________________________ 
      Dave Lienau, President 
Attest: 
 
___________________________________________ 
Christine M. Sully, Clerk/Treasurer  
 
 
 

27



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

     For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 09/15/15 
             Item No.: 3 
 
Recommendation: That the Board accepts the recommendation of the Parks Committee and approves 
amends the Personnel Handbook to reflect new safety standards for employee clothing. 
 
Also, that the Board accept the recommendation of the Personnel Committee to amend the Personnel 
Handbook regarding discontinuation of health benefits for employees and their dependents that become el-
igible for Medicare. 
 
Background:  
The Village has incurred 3 workmans comp claims in the last 120 days.  At least 2 of these injuries were 
preventable.  Following the second injury, the administrator and department heads sought to enhance the 
visibility of safety in the workplace.  We brought in a safety consultant to examine our workplace and prac-
tices, as well as to update many of our items in light of a change from OSHA required MSDS format sheets 
to SDS format sheets.  A number of changes were recommended following a review of our workplace and 
practices.  The change that should be remedied in 2015 is that of our employees meeting ANSI III clothing 
while working within 50’ of a road right of way.  Staff recommends moving to a requirement that all cloth-
ing be ANSI III compliant (reflectivity and visibility enhanced) to improve safety in the workplace.   Other 
safety items will be addressed in the 2016 budget.   
 
It should be noted that we have had 2 complaints of safety violations from independent citizens (respiratory 
health).  A number of photographs were taken (alleged 70), and a threat was made to send to OSHA if we 
did not correct.   

The second amendment to the Personnel Handbook relates to a recommendation of the Personnel Commit-
tee on termination of benefits for employees and dependents that become eligible for Medicare.  A request 
came from an employee that consideration be made for a spouse that will become eligible for Medicare in 
October.  This request was reviewed by both the Utility Committee and the Personnel Committee.  Utilites 
differed to the Personnel Committee.  The Personnel Committee recommended that the request be denied, 
and that a policy be put into place so that future requests can be handled uniformly.   
   
Fiscal Impact:  
Change in safety standards for employee clothing: 
Expenditures in 2015 are substantially budgeted for already; an increase of $400.00 over budget is ex-

pected. 
Expenditures in 2016 may be budgeted appropriately. 
 
Elimination of Benefits for Employees and Spouses eligible for Medicare: 
Savings of $2000.00 in FY2015 
Savings of $3333.33 in FY 2014 
   
Water rates are not changing at this time. The utility rate studies alternate years.  This is due for review 
again in 2017. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

28

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 1 

    Proposed September 15, 2015 2 
 3 
I. PURPOSE. 4 
This handbook is intended to serve as a general reference for all employees of the Village of 5 
Sister Bay (Village). It is intended to provide the employee with a general overview of the bene-6 
fits, policies, practices and work rules of the Village. 7 
 8 
It is obviously not possible for this handbook to cover each and every aspect of Village benefits, 9 
practices, policies and work rules. For this reason, the benefits, practices, policies and work 10 
rules described in this handbook are summarized and are not intended to be all encompassing, 11 
nor applicable in every situation. 12 
 13 
2. NOT A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT. 14 
This Personnel Handbook has been prepared for informational purposes only. This handbook 15 
and the policies contained in it are not intended to create, nor should they be construed to cre-16 
ate, a contract of employment between the Village and any of its employees. All employees are 17 
at-will employees, with an undefined period of employment. Termination of employment may 18 
occur at any time, with or without notice, and for any reason. An employee signing a statement 19 
that he or she has read this Handbook does not constitute a signature meaning a contract of 20 
employment exists between the Village and the employee.  All employees not subject to a spe-21 
cific contract shall be subject to a ninety (90) day probationary period. 22 
 23 
3. CHANGES IN PERSONNEL HANDBOOK. 24 
The Village may, in its sole discretion, modify, add to or eliminate any of the benefits, policies, 25 
practices and work rules in the existing Personnel Handbook at any time. This handbook super-26 
sedes all previous handbooks, statements, policies, procedures, rules or regulations given to 27 
employees, whether verbal or written. This handbook may only be modified by action of the 28 
Village Board confirmed in writing. 29 
 30 
4. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER. 31 
It is the policy of the Village to recruit and select for employment, those individuals who, in the 32 
sole discretion of the Village, meet the requirements and expectations of each particular em-33 
ployment position. Recruitment and selection shall be conducted in an affirmative manner, 34 
which ensures open competition and provides equal employment opportunity without regard to 35 
race, color, creed, religious or political affiliation, national origin, sex, age, handicap or disabil-36 
ity, marital, citizenship, or veteran status, or any other class protected by the discrimination 37 
laws of the United States of America and the State of Wisconsin, except where age, sex, or 38 
physical requirements constitute bona fide occupational qualification and with proper regard 39 
for the privacy and constitutional rights as citizens and to provide an effective career develop-40 
ment plan for qualified employees through promotional opportunities. This applies to all em-41 
ployment decisions including, but not limited to, recruitment, hiring, compensation, benefits, 42 
promotions, transfers, lay-offs, discipline, termination, and other conditions of employment. 43 
(Board of Trustees Approval: 12/14/1999) 44 
 45 
5. HOURS OF WORK. 46 
As a general rule, the workweek will be forty (40) hours. Actual working hours and days may 47 
vary depending upon the individual department requirements and position demands. Devia-48 
tions from the “normal” work schedule are permitted subject to the prior approval of the Village 49 
Administrator or the supervising committee of the Village Board of Trustees. An employee may 50 
be required to work more than forty (40) hours per week if deemed necessary by his/her super-51 

29



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 2 

visor to complete duties assigned to the employee. In the event of overtime work, the employee 1 
will receive overtime pay as calculated under applicable Wisconsin law. Time spent traveling 2 
to training sessions, conferences and seminars outside Door County shall count towards hours 3 
worked in a week. (Revised 10/02/07)  4 
Overtime at the time and a half rate shall be compensable after 40 hours worked in a week; 5 
paid leave time used shall not count as time worked for overtime compensation. (Revised 6 
12/29/14) 7 
 8 
6. CALL BACK. 9 
 A. Compensation for a call back after regular working hours shall be a minimum of 10 

two (2) hours pay. 11 
 B. All employees are always on call; that is, when emergencies require it, any and all 12 

of them may be recalled to work at hours during which they are normally off duty. “On 13 
Call” will refer to the order in which employees are contacted, when the need for unfore-14 
seen work arises. The order in which employees are contacted will rotate according to a 15 
schedule set by the supervisor. The term “On Call” does not imply the need to remain 16 
constantly available for contact by phone, or the need to remain in close proximity to the 17 
work place. Compensation for calls to work during periods when the employee is at the 18 
head of the “on call” rotation will be normal overtime, but no compensation will be paid 19 
in wages or compensatory time for “on call” periods during which no calls to work are 20 
made except for Utilities employees. In recognition of the impact that “on call” status has 21 
upon Utilities employees, the Village will pay $25 per day for an employee “on call” for 22 
Saturday, Sunday and on holidays. This shall be in addition to any call-in overtime or 23 
scheduled off time. (Board of Trustees approval November 30, 2004)  24 

 25 
7. STAND-BY DUTY. 26 
“Stand-by Duty” is coverage by the employee of potential work for the employer of an emer-27 
gency nature. It is the pre-selection of qualified employees who shall be available to respond to 28 
the Village’s call for emergency and other work to be done after normal work hours, or on 29 
weekends and holidays. Hourly compensation will be provided for work performed pursuant to 30 
the provisions in this Personnel Handbook. In addition, the following schedule of compensa-31 
tion will be provided to the employee who has been designated for “Stand-by Duty”; salaried 32 
employees will be compensated for “Stand-by” periods with the appropriate number of hours in 33 
compensatory time only. (Amended by Board of Trustees: March 7, 2000) 34 
 35 
 Single Holiday 3 hours @ 1 ½ times hourly rate 36 
 Weekend 5 hours @ 1 ½ times hourly rate 37 
 Three-Day Weekend 7.5 hours @ 1 ½ times hourly rate 38 
 (Approved by the Board of Trustees: December 14, 1999) 39 
 40 
8. OVERTIME COMPENSATION. 41 
Employees who work in excess of forty (40) hours per week may be compensated at a premium 42 
rate, straight time rate, or not at all depending upon their employment status and the provisions 43 
of the Federal Labor Standards Act (FLSA). An employee has the option to elect to take overtime 44 
pay in the form of compensatory time. If he or she chooses to accept overtime pay as compen-45 
satory time, he or she must make that choice during the week in which the time is earned. Bo-46 
nuses will not be paid to Village employees. Overtime shall be distributed as equally as practi-47 
cable among employees in their respective job classifications within each department. (Revised 48 
10/02/07)  49 

50 

30



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 3 

9. COMPENSATORY TIME OFF. 1 
A.  Compensatory time off shall be figured at a rate not less than one and one-half hours for 2 

each hour of employment for which overtime compensation is required. Compensatory 3 
time off shall be paid at the {regular/overtime} rate earned by the employee in the year in 4 
which the overtime was worked. 5 

B.  An employee who has accrued compensatory time off shall, upon termination of employ-6 
ment, be paid for the unused compensatory time at the wage rate in effect during the year 7 
in which the compensatory time was earned. 8 

C.  An employee who has accrued compensatory time off may request the use of such time so 9 
long as it does not unduly disrupt the operations of the Village. 10 

D.  Compensatory time taken as a cash payout rather than as paid leave time shall not count 11 
towards the 40-hour work week. 12 

E.  At the end of each calendar year after 2014, any earned but unused compensatory time 13 
[“Comp Time”] will be paid out in cash at the hourly rate at which it was earned. 14 

F.  Compensatory time balances existing as of 12/31/14 must be used or paid out within two 15 
years (by December 31, 2016) at the pay rate in effect in December of 2014. 16 

 17 
10. JURY DUTY/SUBPOENAS. 18 
During any period of jury service, or if subpoenaed for business concerning the Village, an em-19 
ployee shall be paid the difference between the employee’s regular rate of pay and any com-20 
pensation received. Employees are to indicate jury, court or deposition hours on their time 21 
cards. The employee will receive his or her regular paycheck and shall endorse any check or 22 
other payment for jury, court or deposition appearance to the Village. 23 
 24 
11. VIOLATIONS OF LAW 25 
Employees whether on or off-duty, shall obey the laws of the United States and of any state and 26 
local jurisdiction in which they are present. A conviction for a violation of criminal law (felony) 27 
shall constitute evidence of a violation of this section. If there is a connection between the con-28 
viction and the employee’s job assignments, such conviction shall be grounds for discipline, up 29 
to and including termination. 30 
 31 
12. ON/OFF DUTY CONDUCT 32 
Conduct that is otherwise legal shall not be covered by this section. The circumstances under 33 
which an employee may be disciplined for on or off duty conduct may include the following: 34 
 A. conduct that is unbecoming; 35 
 B. adversely affects the morale or efficiency of the Department; 36 
 C. adversely affects employees’ job performance or the willingness of other employees 37 

to work with the employee; 38 
 D. destroys public respect for the employee and/or the Department and/or destroys 39 

confidence in the operation or the municipal service; 40 
 E. where the conduct substantially relates to the job performance or job duties. 41 
 42 
13. POSSESSION OR USE OF ALCOHOL OR DRUGS 43 
Employees must report to work free of drugs, intoxicants, alcohol, narcotics, or any other con-44 
trolled substance. Employees may be disciplined, up to and including termination, for posses-45 
sion, consumption, not being free of, being under the influence of, or use of any drugs, drug 46 
paraphernalia, intoxicants, alcohol, narcotics, or any other controlled substance, on or about 47 
Village premises at any time. 48 
 49 

31



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 4 

Any medication that affects an employee or could affect an employee’s performance should be 1 
brought to the supervisor’s attention. Such prescription drugs must be given under medical su-2 
pervision and may not interfere with the performance of job duties. 3 
 4 
Under certain circumstances, the Village may require an employee to undergo a drug and/or 5 
alcohol test when the Village has a reasonable suspicion that the employee is violating this 6 
rule. The employee will be referred to a certified testing laboratory for completion of the test. 7 
Depending on the seriousness and circumstances of the offense, and at the Village’s sole discre-8 
tion, an employee who tests positive for drugs and/or alcohol may be referred to counseling, 9 
rehabilitation or an employee assistance program. Refusal to cooperate may result in discipline, 10 
up to and including termination. This shall not restrict employees from having alcohol in sealed 11 
containers in their private vehicles. 12 
 13 
14. INAPPROPRIATE BEHAVIOR. 14 
An employee will not do any of the following:  15 
 D. Steal or destroy Village property 16 
 E. Willfully, misuse, abuse or damage Village or public property. 17 
 F. Disclose statutory confidential materials. 18 
 G. Fail to comply with Village ordinances or written departmental rules or procedures. 19 
 H. Be disrespectful to superiors or to the public. 20 
 I. Create a disturbance on work premises by fighting or other conduct, which ad-21 

versely affects morale, production or maintenance of proper discipline. 22 
 J. Sleep on the job. 23 
 K. Violate safety rules and practices. (Approved by Board of Trustees: December 14, 24 

1999) 25 
 L. Fail to report an on-the-job injury or accident immediately, falsify or refuse to give 26 

testimony when job-related accidents are being investigated. 27 
 M. Falsify reports, records or time cards. 28 
 N. Exhibit poor work performance. 29 
 O. Be habitually absent or tardy. 30 
 P. Harass fellow employees or superiors. 31 
 Q. Be insubordinate, including refusing to perform work assignments. 32 
 R. Misuse paid time off (PTO). 33 
 S. Gamble, or conduct a lottery on or off Village property during work hours. 34 
 T. Procure simultaneous legal garnishments. 35 
 U.  Accept gifts and gratuities as defined. 36 
 37 
The above items do not constitute a complete list of the rules employees are expected to con-38 
form to and are pro-vided for general reference. Compliance with these rules does not guaran-39 
tee employment. As stated in Section 2, an employee may be terminated at any time for any 40 
reason. 41 
 42 
15. GIFTS AND GRATUITIES. 43 
No full time or part time Village employee shall solicit or accept for himself/herself or another 44 
person any gift, campaign contribution, gratuity, favor, services, promise of future employment, 45 
entertainment, loan, or any other item of monetary value from a person or entity who has or is 46 
seeking business activities from, or which are regulated by, the Village. Employees attending 47 
meetings, seminars and conventions will be allowed to accept “give-away” items such as key 48 

32



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 5 

chains, coffee mugs, hats, etc., which are offered to all attendees and do not exceed a value of 1 
twenty-five ($25) dollars. (Amended by the Board of Trustees: March 7, 2000) 2 
 3 
16. MARINA GRATUITIES 4 
Marina employees shall be permitted to accept tips. All tips shall be shared at the end of the 5 
season based upon the hours worked each year during the season between May 15 and Sep-6 
tember 1. Marina management shall be responsible for collecting all the tips and depositing 7 
them on a weekly basis. All tips shall be reported for federal and state tax purposes. No signs, 8 
jars or other notices related to tipping shall be displayed at the Marina. (Revised January 8, 9 
2008) 10 
 11 
17. SEXUAL HARASSMENT. 12 
 A. Sexual harassment is illegal. No employee, male or female, shall sexually harass 13 

another employee. All employees have a right to a working environment which is free of 14 
intimidation and harassment. Every employee is entitled to be treated with common dig-15 
nity and courtesy. 16 

 B. Any employee having a complaint concerning sexual harassment shall notify the 17 
employee’s immediate supervisor, or if the supervisor is part of the complaint, the Village 18 
Administrator. If the Village Administrator is the accused, the employee shall notify the 19 
Chairman of the Personnel Committee. The Village will investigate the complaint. The 20 
complainant will be notified of the results of the investigation by the Village. 21 

 22 
18. DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES. 23 
The Village reserves the right to discipline its employees for violation of Village rules or prac-24 
tices, whether contained in this Personnel Handbook, or not. In certain cases, depending on the 25 
severity of the conduct, a single violation could result in the employee’s discharge. In some 26 
cases, where the outcome of employee conduct could be termination, the Village may choose 27 
to suspend an employee, with or without pay, pending the outcome of an investigation. Upon 28 
review of all of the circumstances, a final determination on employment will be made. 29 
 30 
19. PERSONNEL FILE. 31 
 A. The Village Administrator shall establish and maintain master employee personnel 32 

files for all active employees. An employee may request to see the contents of the em-33 
ployee’s personnel file. The employee may, upon making prior arrangements with the 34 
Village Administrator, inspect the contents of the file in the presence of the Administrator 35 
during the employee’s non-working hours. The employee may not remove any document 36 
from the file. (Board of Trustee Approval: December 14, 1999) 37 

 B. The right of an employee to inspect his or her personnel records does not apply to 38 
the following situations: 39 

  1. Records relating to the investigation of possible criminal offenses committed 40 
by that employee. 41 

  2. Letters of reference for that employee. 42 
  3. Any portion of a test document, except that the employee may see a cumula-43 

tive total test score either for a section of the test document or for the entire 44 
test document. 45 

  4. Materials used by the Village for staff management planning, including 46 
judgments or recommendations concerning future salary increases and other 47 
wage treatments promotions and job assignments or other comments or rat-48 
ings used for the employer’s planning purposes. 49 

33



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 6 

  5. Information of a personal nature about a person other than the employee if 1 
disclosure of the information would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion 2 
of the other person’s privacy. 3 

 4 
20. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES. 5 
The Village will pay the cost of training and examinations for pre-approved employment related 6 
courses. Mileage will be paid for use of a personal vehicle in attending training classes if a Vil-7 
lage vehicle is not available. Mileage reimbursement shall be paid at the current county rate. 8 
The Village may make Tetanus, Hepatitis and Influenza shots available to employees. The Wis-9 
consin State Deferred Compensation Program is available for all Village employees who choose 10 
to participate. 11 
 12 
21. HOLIDAYS. 13 
 A. Village employees shall be granted seven (7) days of paid holidays during the year. 14 
 The granted days are as follows: 15 

1. New Year’s Day 16 
2. Memorial Day 17 
3. Independence Day 18 
4. Labor Day 19 
5. Thanksgiving Day 20 
6. The day after Thanksgiving(revised 12/19/14) 21 
7. Christmas Day 22 

B. When a full day holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed 23 
as a holiday. When a full day holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be 24 
observed as the holiday. 25 

 C. Village employees who are scheduled for or called into work on a holiday listed in 26 
“A” above shall be paid double time for the hours worked. (Amended 9/12/02) 27 

 28 
22.  PAID TIME OFF (PTO). (Board of Trustee Approval: 12/29/14) 29 
Paid Time Off (PTO) is available to all full time employees (defined as working more than 32 30 
hours per week on a regularly scheduled basis for the calendar year) and may be used for vaca-31 
tion, sick leave, personal time, emergency or bereavement leave or for time off to care for de-32 
pendents. 33 
 34 
PTO must be scheduled in advance in increments of at least one hour and approved by the de-35 
partment head except for cases of illness or emergency. Acceptance of PTO by the department 36 
head will be based on seniority, staffing needs and workload. 37 
 38 
At the discretion of the Village Administrator, a doctor’s note will be required for illnesses over 39 
3 days. Short-Term Disability must be applied for when illness is expected to last more than 40 
seven days.  PTO may be used to fund the elimination period (or as allowed by the Village-paid 41 
Short Term Disability policy). 42 
 43 
Employees hired or in a newly eligible full-time status on or after January 1, 2015 will be cov-44 
ered under this new policy.  PTO includes vacation, sick leave, personal time, emergency or 45 
bereavement leave, and time off to care for dependents. Effective January 1, 2015, PTO is ac-46 
crued according to the following schedule: 47 
 48 

34



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 7 

Completed Service   PTO Days     Maximum   1 
           Accumulation Cap 2 
0 – 4.99 Years   20 days/ hours per pay period       30 Days  3 
5 – 14.99 Years   26 days/ hours per pay period      36 Days 4 
15+ Years    31 days/ hours per pay period    41 Days  5 
 6 
PTO will accrue and be available on a per pay period basis up to the Maximum Accumulation 7 
Cap. No accrual above the Maximum Accumulation Cap will be compensable. Any PTO ac-8 
crued above the Maximum Accumulation Cap will be put into a reserve account. This PTO will 9 
have no cash value and will not be paid out upon termination. Accrual rates will change on an 10 
employees’ 5th and 15th year anniversaries. 11 
 12 
No transfer of PTO by or between employees is allowed. 13 
 14 
Upon termination, 10 days of PTO will be deducted in lieu of two weeks’ notice if said notice 15 
is not given. Any balance earned but unused up to the Maximum Accumulation Cap will be 16 
paid out in cash upon termination or retirement. 17 
 18 
Transition for personnel employed and in full-time status before January 1, 2015. 19 
 20 
Vacation accrued during 2014 will be available effective January 1, 2015.   21 
 22 
PTO for personnel employed in full-time status prior to January 1, 2015 will accrue according 23 
to the following schedule and will include vacation, sick leave, personal time, emergency or 24 
bereavement leave, and time off to care for dependents: 25 
 26 
Completed Service     PTO Days     Maximum      27 
             Accumulation Cap 28 
1 – 7.99 Yrs    24 days/ hours per pay period      34 Days 29 
8 – 14.99 Years   29 days/ hours per pay period      39 Days 30 
15 – 21.99 Years   34 days/ hours per pay period     44 Days 31 
 32 
22+ Years as of 1/01/15* 39 days/ hours per pay period      49 Days  33 
 34 
Beginning January 1, 2015, PTO will accrue and be available on a per pay period basis up to 35 
the Maximum Accumulation Cap. The Maximum Accumulation Cap will include vacation days 36 
earned in 2014 and available in 2015. No accrual above the Maximum Accumulation Cap will 37 
be compensable. Any PTO accrued in excess of the Maximum Accumulation Cap will be put 38 
into a reserve account. This PTO will have no cash value and will not be paid out upon termi-39 
nation. Accrual rates will change on employees’ 1st, 8th, and 15th year anniversaries. 40 
 41 
*This accrual amount and Maximum Accumulation Cap will apply only to those employees 42 
who have completed 22 years of service before January 1, 2015. All other employees who have 43 
less than 22 years of service before January 1, 2015 will have a maximum of 34 days PTO and 44 
44 days Maximum Accumulation Cap.  45 
 46 
Sick leave balances will be put into an account to be used to fund the Short-Term Disability 47 
elimination period (or as allowed by the Village-paid Short-Term Disability policy) or for up to 48 
5 days of emergency leave. Upon termination, up to 30 days of remaining sick leave may be 49 

35



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 8 

converted to cash at 50% of the hourly rate in effect in December 2014 by full-time employees 1 
who have completed 20 or more years of service. 2 
 3 
All other provisions of the new policy effective January 1, 2015 will apply to employees active 4 
and in full-time status before January 1, 2015. 5 
 6 
23. FAMILY LEAVE.(Adopted by the Village Board of Trustees 12/29/14) 7 
 8 
 A. Employees who have worked at least one thousand (1,250) hours in the preceding 9 

fifty-two (52) week period shall be allowed: 10 
  1.   Up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid family leave over a twelve (12) month pe-11 

riod for the care of a child, spouse or parent with a serious health condition. 12 
  2.   Up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid family leave in a twelve (12) month period 13 

for birth of a child, placement of a child for adoption or as a pre-condition for adop-14 
tion. 15 

  3.  Up to twenty six (26) weeks of unpaid family leave over a twelve month period 16 
for the care of a child, spouse or parent with a military service connected illness or 17 
injury. 18 

 B. All employees intending to use such leave shall give the Village advance notice in 19 
a reasonable and practicable manner so that the Village can schedule a replacement, if 20 
necessary, and make provisions to ad-just the Village work schedules. 21 

 22 
24. WORKER’S COMPENSATION. 23 
 24 
 A. All Village employees are covered by Worker’s Compensation (WC). WC covers 25 
those injuries sustained by employees on the job or on Village property. This program is admin-26 
istered by the State of Wisconsin and basically consists of the following types of benefits: 27 
  1. Medical and Hospital care 28 
  2. Disability benefits 29 
  3. Death benefits 30 
 B. To qualify for WC, an employee who is injured on the job must strictly follow the 31 

Village’s accident reporting procedures, including immediate notification to a supervisor 32 
or the Village Administrator that an accident has occurred. All legal requirements estab-33 
lished by the State and Federal Governments must be followed. The time lost from work 34 
for a worker’s compensation accident shall not be charged against an employee’s ac-35 
crued sick time. (Revised 10/02/07) 36 

 C. The Village will attempt to provide an employee with light duty work if the em-37 
ployee is able to return to work but unable to perform his or her regular assignment. 38 

 D. The Village’s first and foremost objective is to do all that can be done to prevent in-39 
jury by providing safety awareness, specific safety related skill training, and by continual-40 
ly encouraging each employee’s active participation in the mutual quest for a safe work 41 
place. 42 

 43 
25. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION INSURANCE. 44 
 45 
The State of Wisconsin administers Unemployment Compensation Insurance. If an employee is 46 
laid off and meets certain qualifications, weekly benefits are available. Employees who volun-47 
tarily quit or who are terminated by the Village for cause ordinarily will not be eligible for this 48 
benefit. Wisconsin Law determines the amount of compensation received. Application for ben-49 

36



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 9 

efits can be made at the local Employment Security Commission Office. (Board of Trustee Ap-1 
proval: December 14, 1999) 2 
 3 
 4 
26. PERSONNEL TO OBEY MEDICAL PRACTITIONER’S ORDERS 5 
 A. Employees shall obey their medical practitioner’s orders and shall promptly notify 6 
their supervisor of any restrictions or instructions by their medical practitioner, or prescribed 7 
medications that could affect their ability to perform their assigned tasks.  8 
 B. The Department Head shall have the right to require an employee who has a phys-9 
ical or mental incapacity to submit a report from a licensed medical practitioner verifying that 10 
the employee can perform the essential functions of his/her assigned duties without limitations. 11 
 C. The Village may require a medical examination for an employee by a medical 12 
practitioner selected and paid for by the Village whenever the Village shall deem it necessary 13 
for the safety and welfare of the residents of the Village and the maintenance of standards with-14 
in the Department. If the results of the examination would affect the employee’s ability to work, 15 
then the employee may have a second opinion at his/her expense by a medical practitioner of 16 
his/her choice. If there is a difference of opinion by the first two medical practitioners, the em-17 
ployee may be examined by a medical practitioner mutually agreeable to the Village and the 18 
employee paid for by the Village consistent with the terms of a collective bargaining agreement. 19 
 20 
27. RESERVED. 21 
 22 
28. APPEARANCE AND DEMEANOR. 23 
All Village employees who have contact with people in the community who are either residents 24 
or visitors, will create lasting impressions with them by their interactions with the community 25 
and by the observations of their work performance. All Village employees are encouraged to 26 
present a positive image and demonstrate an interest in their work. All employees are expected 27 
to be neat and clean in appearance and to dress in a manner appropriate to the nature of their 28 
position. Designated employees will wear uniform items provided by the Village during their 29 
duty hours. 30 
 31 
29. CONFIDENTIALITY. 32 
No Village employee shall use or disclose privileged confidential information gained in the 33 
course of work or by reason of the employee’s official position or activities, unless authorized 34 
by law. No confidential information concerning any citizen may be released to an unauthor-35 
ized person or agency without the signed consent of the citizen. 36 
 37 
30. PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS. 38 
All employees shall have an annual review of performance, usually to coincide with Village 39 
budget dates and/or salary review. The person conducting the review shall be an immediate 40 
supervisor or the Village Administrator. In the case of the Village Administrator, the Board of 41 
Trustees shall designate the rater. Each supervisor shall utilize the Village Performance Review 42 
Form. The Village Board of Trustees will review these forms annually in closed session. 43 
 44 
31. APPROVAL OF REQUESTS. 45 
The following levels of Village authority will provide approval of employee requests: 46 
 1. Immediate Supervisor 47 
 2. Village Administrator 48 
 3. Village Personnel Committee 49 

37



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 10 

 4. Village Board of Trustees (This document was approved by the Board of Trustees 1 
on December 14, 1999, and amended March 7, 2000.)  2 

 3 
32. CLOTHING POLICY 4 
 5 
 A. This Clothing Policy is established for all the employees of the Parks Department 6 

and field employees of the Utilities Department. Each employee shall have an amount 7 
divided equally for all full time employees, set aside in the annual budget for work relat-8 
ed clothing. Each employee is expected to mange their purchases to cover their needs for 9 
the entire year. If an employee elects to use a clothing service then the cost of that service 10 
shall count towards the total annual allocation. 11 

 B. Employees are urged to purchase clothing through the Village Administration office 12 
to avoid paying for sales tax. The department head shall approve all purchases including 13 
colors and materials. The department head shall review the balance in each employee’s 14 
account twice a year with the employee. Each employee is expected to dress appropriate-15 
ly for work each day in clean clothing that is free from rips and stains. Only shirts, and 16 
outerwear with that are ANSI Class III compliant shall be worn. Hats shall bear the Vil-17 
lage logo. 18 

 C. The following items are eligible for purchase under this program: 19 
  Long sleeve and short sleeve shirts 20 
  Pants and shorts (Shorts to only be worn while performing approved activities.) 21 
  Sweat shirts, coats and related items 22 
  Hats 23 
 D. The following items are eligible for reimbursement subject to the restrictions as fol-24 

lows: 25 
  Safety shoes subject to reimbursement up to $100 per year. Shoes other than safety 26 

shoes may only be worn while performing approved activities. 27 
  Prescription safety glasses subject to reimbursement up to $150 every other year.  28 
 E. The Village will provide the following items beyond the allocation above: 29 
  Logos to be placed on items of clothing 30 
  Work gloves 31 
  Coveralls 32 
  Hard hats and other safety gear 33 
  Boots and rain gear for working in wet environments 34 
  Hats 35 
 F. The employee is responsible for the regular cleaning of all items. If an employee 36 

has used all of their allocation for work clothing and items are damaged or worn out they 37 
shall be replaced at the employee’s expense. It shall be at the discretion of the depart-38 
ment head to replace at Village expense any approved clothing item that is damaged by 39 
an accident, not normal wear or tear while the employee is working. 40 

 41 
33.  BENEFITS ELIGIBILITY 42 
 43 
 A.  Employees and/or spouses eligible for Medicare will automatically become ineligible 44 

for coverage under the Village’s Health Insurance Program. 45 
 46 

47 

38



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 11 

  1 

Personnel Handbook Employee Acknowledgment Receipt 2 

 3 

 4 
I acknowledge that I have received the Village of Sister Bay Personnel Handbook and read its 5 
provisions. I understand that the Village may modify or eliminate the terms described in the 6 
Personnel Handbook at any time, with or without prior notice. 7 
 8 
I further understand that the Village’s Personnel Handbook and any provisions contained in the 9 
handbook do not constitute a guaranty of employment, a guaranty of any other rights or bene-10 
fits, or a contract of employment, ex-press or implied. I understand that my employment may 11 
be terminated at any time for any reason, with or without cause, and with or without notice, at 12 
the option of the Village or at my option. 13 
 14 
 15 
Dated this ______day of ____________________, 20___. 16 
 17 
_______________________________________________________ 18 
Employee Signature: 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 

39



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

     For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 09/15/15 
             Item No.: 4 
 
Recommendation:  
 
That the Board accepts the recommendation of Action Appraisers and the Village Clerk Treasurer and ap-
proves Charter Communications request for a refund of 2014 personal property taxes in the amount of 
$2738.94. 
 
Background:  
 
See attached guidance document from the Wisconsin Department of Revenue. 
   
Fiscal Impact:  
 
$2738.94 will be refunded to Charter Communications. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 

40

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


41



42



43



44



45



46



47



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

     For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

             Meeting Date: 09/15/15 
             Item No.: 5 
 
Recommendation:  
 
That the Board accepts the recommendation of the Personnel Committee and change coverage for employ-
ees from a Short Term Disability Policy to a Long Term Disability Policy. 
 
Background:  
The Village switched agents based on a recommendation of the Personnel Committee in 2014.  This new 
agent has just comprehensively examined the Village’s insurance and benefits and made a number of rec-
ommendations.  While some numbers are still yet to come regarding Health, and Dental/Vision coverages, 
one type of coverage may be examined now. 
 
The Village currently offers a short term disability policy for employees.  This policy covers injured or ill 
employees that are disabled for a period of 6 months, following an elimination period of 7 days.  Given 
that many employees carry some PTO over to cover some elimination period, it is both a financial ad-
vantage to the Village, and a benefit advantage to the employee, to cover the employees under a long term 
disability policy.   
 
The proposed policy has an elimination period of 60 days, but a duration period until Social Security Nor-
mal Retirement Age.  Once an employee qualifies for SSDI, the policy provides a 10% “benefit” until 
SSNRI.  Given that the time it takes to navigate the SSI disability insurance program is normally substantial-
ly longer than 2 years, and requires an attorney in most cases (and that SSDI is insolvent as of FY 2016), it 
is substantially more of a benefit to our employees to offer this coverage as opposed to a short term disabil-
ity policy. 
   
Fiscal Impact:  
 
Reduction of approximately $2128 annually. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 

48

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


49



50



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY – PERSONNEL HANDBOOK 
Proposed September 15, 2015 

 

 6 

  5. Information of a personal nature about a person other than the employee if 1 
disclosure of the information would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion 2 
of the other person’s privacy. 3 

 4 
20. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES. 5 
The Village will pay the cost of training and examinations for pre-approved employment related 6 
courses. Mileage will be paid for use of a personal vehicle in attending training classes if a Vil-7 
lage vehicle is not available. Mileage reimbursement shall be paid at the current county rate. 8 
The Village may make Tetanus, Hepatitis and Influenza shots available to employees. The Wis-9 
consin State Deferred Compensation Program is available for all Village employees who choose 10 
to participate. 11 
 12 
21. HOLIDAYS. 13 
 A. Village employees shall be granted seven (7) days of paid holidays during the year. 14 
 The granted days are as follows: 15 

1. New Year’s Day 16 
2. Memorial Day 17 
3. Independence Day 18 
4. Labor Day 19 
5. Thanksgiving Day 20 
6. The day after Thanksgiving(revised 12/19/14) 21 
7. Christmas Day 22 

B. When a full day holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed 23 
as a holiday. When a full day holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be 24 
observed as the holiday. 25 

 C. Village employees who are scheduled for or called into work on a holiday listed in 26 
“A” above shall be paid double time for the hours worked. (Amended 9/12/02) 27 

 28 
22.  PAID TIME OFF (PTO). (Board of Trustee Approval: 12/29/14) 29 
Paid Time Off (PTO) is available to all full time employees (defined as working more than 32 30 
hours per week on a regularly scheduled basis for the calendar year) and may be used for vaca-31 
tion, sick leave, personal time, emergency or bereavement leave or for time off to care for de-32 
pendents. 33 
 34 
PTO must be scheduled in advance in increments of at least one hour and approved by the de-35 
partment head except for cases of illness or emergency. Acceptance of PTO by the department 36 
head will be based on seniority, staffing needs and workload. 37 
 38 
At the discretion of the Village Administrator, a doctor’s note will be required for illnesses over 39 
3 days. Short-Term Disability must be applied for when illness is expected to last more than 40 
seven days.  PTO may be used to fund the elimination period (or as allowed by the Village-paid 41 
Short Term Disability policy).Employees will have access to a long term disability insurance 42 
policy, provided by the Village, in the event of illness or injury. 43 
 44 
Employees hired or in a newly eligible full-time status on or after January 1, 2015 will be cov-45 
ered under this new policy.  PTO includes vacation, sick leave, personal time, emergency or 46 
bereavement leave, and time off to care for dependents. Effective January 1, 2015, PTO is ac-47 
crued according to the following schedule: 48 
 49 

51



 

Thank you for your participation in this survey.  Please take a few minutes to share your 
opinion.  All answers will remain completely confidential and anonymous- no personal 
information will be shared. 
 
1.  First, think about the Sister Bay Village Government and rate it on the following 
attributes, using a scale from 1 to 5, where 1 means “Poor” and 5 means “Excellent” 
      

“Poor” 1     2    3      4      5 “Excellent”  

Has leaders that are trustworthy             □  □  □  □  □ 
Offers services that are well managed            □  □  □  □  □ 
Has Employees that are well trained  □  □  □  □  □ 
Ensures quality neighborhoods             □  □  □  □  □ 
Is open to citizen ideas and involvement            □  □  □  □  □ 
Drinking Water Quality                         □  □  □  □  □ 
Stormwater Control               □  □  □  □  □ 
Garbage Collection               □  □  □  □  □ 

 

2.  Rate the Economic Health of Sister Bay on the following aspects: 
       

1     2     3     4     5 

Cost of living          □  □  □  □  □ 

Affordability of housing        □  □  □  □  □ 

Stability of property values        □  □  □  □  □ 

Strength of local economy        □  □  □  □  □ 

Quality of jobs                    □  □  □  □  □ 
 
 
 
 
 

52



2 

3.  Rate the following services in terms of priority, with 1 being “low priority”, and 5 
being “high priority”:     

1     2     3     4     5 

Parks and Recreation         □  □  □  □  □ 

Economic Development        □  □  □  □  □ 

Utilities           □  □  □  □  □ 

Roads           □  □  □  □  □ 

Festivals and Events              □  □  □  □  □ 
Internet           □  □  □  □  □ 

 
 
4.  On a scale where 1 is “strongly disagree” and 5 is “strongly agree”, to what degree 
do you agree or disagree that Sister Bay is: 
                 1     2     3     4     5 

A safe place to live    □  □  □  □  □ 

Enjoyable place for children   □  □  □  □  □ 

Enjoyable place for young adults  □  □  □  □  □ 

Enjoyable place for Senior Citizens  □  □  □  □  □ 

Enjoyable place for everyone else  □  □  □  □  □ 

A great place to live    □  □  □  □  □ 

A great place to have a business  □  □  □  □  □ 

A safe place to bike and walk  □  □  □  □  □ 

A safe place to walk at night   □  □  □  □  □ 

A perfect community for me   □  □  □  □  □ 
 
5.  Compared to 5 years ago, would you say the following have Gotten Worse, Stayed 
the Same or Gotten Better?  Rate 1 as “Gotten Much Worse” and 5 as “Gotten Much 
Better”.  
                           1     2     3     4     5 

The quality of life on your street                  □  □  □  □  □ 

The “business friendliness” of government □  □  □  □  □ 

The image of Sister Bay in Door County    □  □  □  □  □ 
 

53



3 

 
 
6. Like all families, the Village of Sister Bay needs to live within its budget.  What this 
means in planning for the Village Budget is the need to establish priorities.  In recent 
years, the prioritization process has become more challenging due to levy limits.  
Going forward, revenues to fund core Village services (taxes, fees, ect.) may not keep 
pace with the cost of providing such services.  If revenues were not adequate to 
maintain Village services at current levels, please indicate the budgeting strategies or 
approaches that you would support for each of the services listed below. (Mark all 
that apply).            Reduce                            Combine with 

                Service Level         Raise Taxes       Raise User Fees     another town      Privatize/Contract  

Utilities    □            □            □            □            □ 

Festivals/Events   □            □            □            □            □ 

Trash Service   □            □            □            □            □ 

Affiliate Organizations            □            □            □            □            □ 

Parks Maintenance  □            □            □            □            □ 

Road Maintenance  □            □            □            □            □ 

Economic Development □            □            □            □            □ 
Marina         □            □            □            □            □ 
 
7.  If Sister Bay were to tackle new projects over the next 5 years, which projects 
would you think were the most important, with “1” being “least important” and 5 
being “most important”     

1     2     3     4     5 

Road Maintenance         □  □  □  □  □ 

Village Hall Remodeling        □  □  □  □  □ 

Marina Docks          □  □  □  □  □ 

Marina Fuel System         □  □  □  □  □ 

Storm Sewer System              □  □  □  □  □ 

Road Repair          □  □  □  □  □ 

Public Wifi           □  □  □  □  □ 

Enhanced Dog Park         □  □  □  □  □ 

Festivals and Events              □  □  □  □  □ 

Reducing Debt          □  □  □  □  □ 

54



4 

8.  What do you feel are the greatest challenges that Sister Bay faces “1” being “least 
challenging” and 5 being “most challenging     

1     2     3     4     5 

Aging Infrastructure         □  □  □  □  □ 

Aging Population          □  □  □  □  □ 

Workforce Housing         □  □  □  □  □ 

Internet           □  □  □  □  □ 

Public Parking                □  □  □  □  □ 

Lack of Renewable Energy        □  □  □  □  □ 

Water Quality of Bay         □  □  □  □  □ 

Property Values          □  □  □  □  □ 

Festivals and Events              □  □  □  □  □ 

Public Debt Level          □  □  □  □  □ 

 

9.  Demographic Information (optional)  Please tell us about yourself, circle the 
appropriate answer: 

Yearly Household Income:     Less than $25,000     $25,001-49,999      Over $50,000 

Do you own or rent your residence:  Own     Rent 

Approximately how many years have you been a resident of Sister Bay: 0-5     Over 5  

Are you, or anyone in your home younger than 50 years old: Yes     No 

Are you, or anyone in your home younger than 25 years old:  Yes     No 

Do you own a business in Sister Bay:  Yes     No 

Do you currently work in Sister Bay:  Yes     No 

Your Crazy Idea for Sister Bay:______________________________________________ 

Thank you for your help in making Sister Bay a better community for all of us to 

call home.  Your opinion is important to us in making decisions about the future of our 
Town.  Please return this survey to the Administrative Offices, or mail to PO Box 769 
Sister Bay, WI 54234. 

55



56



Citizen Comments on 2015 Survey 
 

E-  Rerout honeydipper trucks off Scandia Rd. - they leak profusely!          

              

F - Public transportation between Sturgeon Bay and N Door.           

             

I - A shopping mall on Mill & 42 as per enclosed print - outs.           

             

J - Make Zeke Jackson dictator of Sister Bay with no oversight! 2024 Winter Olympics        

                

K - A public transportation trolley system (propane) with federal support to relieve traffic & parking.      

                  

L - Treat the Marina as an asset and be market competitive.           

             

P - Done - Beach Expansion Love It!!!              

          

R - Utilize Village Hall by opening up side facing water. Keep signs to  minimum size.        

                

T - A Village Board made up of 25 - 35 yr.olds             

           

U - Not promoting alcohol based events. We are getting known as Fall Down Fest - not nice advertising. Is that what we want?!   

   

V - Conncet N Spring Rd with S Spring Rd. Eliminate a lot of "wait".          

              

W - Fire Zeke                 

       

X - More bike paths.                

                  

                  

57



                  

        

Y - Don't become like Fish Creek!              

          

Z - Make Inn At Kristophers Up Scale 2 story restaurant.            

            

AC - Set up an observatory on the beach for the public.            

            

AE - Develop unused real estate in-town.             

           

AG - Stop treating a survey like this in a jestful, trivial manner-by asking fr a "Crazy" idea. Consider how foolish you've made yourselves appear 

by asking for "Crazy Ideas. If you think you are so funny, leave sister bay and try stand-up comedy in vegas. And take the Sunsplash Fesival with 

you. where it will be just as poorly attended.             

           

AI - Develop Country Walk, find a way to get businesses come to SB, decent grocery store. Bring back Winterfest rather than summersplash! 

Draws people to SB                

        

AJ - Safety, cones needed at cross-walks, enforce traffic laws,especially excess speeds.        

                

AK - Make it beautiful again! We have more people young + older coming to Sister Bay for Al Johnsons + boat riedes. We don't need 

campouts/music festivals to bring that demo +groups in.           

             

AL - Put a hault to spending on the waterfront.             

           

AM - Privatize the Marina. Don't build the fruds from it inot a larger budget.         

               

AN - Increase the village's incentive to develop the vacant land along Bayshore Dr & Mill Rd.       

                  

                  

58



                  

                 

AO - Due something north of Bhirdo's for the tax payer.            

            

AP - Place for dogs to swim. No More Condos!!! Tiki bar by the beach "Leased" to interested partys bring some fun. Sell food & beverages like 

Nicolet Beach.                 

                

 Everyone wants to know about the fine gravel on the beach?          

        

AQ - Plant more trees & shrubs. Do our best to hide the new transforer boxes with hedges & give minimum clearance for servicing them.  

    

AU - Run it like a business. With the additon of bike lanes on 42, keep bikes off sidwalks & walkways      

                  

AV - Cut taxes on waterfront property. I just sold a condo that was appraised @$440,000 for $240,000. You closed one of the largest tax payers 

in town Helm's                 

       

AY - Senior Exersice Ctr.                

        

AZ - Lower Property taxes to attract new homeowners            

            

BA - Involve citizens in governing!              

          

BD - Crate a "Look" for Sister Bay. Currently the business along 42 are not charming to look at by visitors.      

                  

BF - Gondola between N+S (top of hill to bottom)            

            

BG - This has been a nice, quite, family community. We don't need crazy ideas!         

                  

                  

59



                  

               

BI - I love the idea of a bike/walking path form one end of Sister Bay to the other, repaint crosswalk lines, make sure to enforce no dogs in park! 

     

BK - Casino                 

       

BL - More speed limit signs on Woodcrest especially Southbound.          

              

BM - Quit spending so much money. Get friendly to business. Taxes are way high.        

                

BN - Enforce park rules. What a novel Idea!             

           

BQ - The beach front is pretty, but I am concerned about all of the pebbles rather than sand…Makes for a very uncomfortable beach experience! 

Also, 2 goats in a tiny pen at the creamery is unacceptable.           

             

BR - While the beach is fabulious, it fails in several levels: pebbeles in the sand make walking uncomfortable, grass or sand instead of mulch. 

Enforcement of no U turns in Marina              

          

BS - Get Rid of little stones on the new beach - horrible to walk, lay, play on!         

               

BU - Venue for Weddings               

         

BV - Build on Al Johnson's Swedish Architecture for buildings.           

             

BW - Become a "Smart City" by using the Internet of Everthing" DOT to manage city services       

                 

BX - Get post office out of downtown. How about using old drugstore at country walk? Take PO Bldg totally.     

                 

 BY - "Secession"                

                  

60



 
 
 
 

61



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 2 

62



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 3 

63



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 4 

64



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 5 

65



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

67



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and approved 011414 
 

 8 

 

68



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

69



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 102114 

 2 

 

 

 

 

 

70



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 102114 

 3 

71



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 102114 

 4 

72



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 102114 

 5 

 
 
 

73



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 102114 

 6 

 

74



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 102114 

 7 

75



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, approved 102114 

 8 

 

 

 

 

 

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 09/15/15  
            Item No.: 12 
 
Activities: 
  
Line Burial-Work on the Bay Shore Dr. Line Burial project is substantially completed.  Some movement of assets will need to occur 
for the DOT portion of the BSD project.   
 
Sledding Hill- Work starts and stops on the project, largely around the Beach and excavation of materials there.  The first load of 
screenings has been placed and the rough outline of the hill is taking shape.  The contractor will be engaged at the Beach for the 
next several weeks. 
 
Beach- the beach is substantially completed, and work re-started the week after Labor Day.  There will be some cost increases due 
to Parks Committee actions on Sidewalks. 
 
Marinafest-the event appears to have been a massive success.  Surveys are now out to businesses and we are anxious to gage the 
impact that the festival had on surrounding businesses.  Cedar walk shops reported triple revenue due to the festival move and ex-
tension to a second day.   
 
Niagara Ridge- Construction is underway, and we look forward to 36 new apartments soon. 
 
Harbor View-Preliminary plans have been reviewed by Plan Commission and approved.  The Developer, engineers and DOT are 
working to prepare for the next phase of approval. 
 
Stony Ridge- Mr. Garot has not met deadlines agreed to in the development agreement.  Engineering work has been completed.  A 
request has been made of our engineers regarding the rebid it was reported that a meeting is scheduled for Sept. 14 to go over bid 
results. 
 
Personnel- The search for a new finance director has resumed; Janal has worked to place advertising as of this writing.  Duties of 
the Finance Director have been split between existing staff.  The Personnel Committee recommended we change the title to “Fi-
nance Supervisor” in order to encourage applicants to apply.  The Village has also taken on a Legal intern from UW Madison.  She 
is currently tasked with rewriting our Zoning Code in light of Reed V. Town of Gilbert. 
 
Marina- The season continues to be on target.  Some accounting still needs to be resolved.  Seasonal slip revenues are near all time 
highs, and transient rentals are in line to be at or near all time highs. 
 
Marketing- Movies in the Park continue to attract crowds; we need to have a discussion as to the future direction of marketing; to 
be addressed at this Board meeting. The current focus is on Wayfinding Signage outreach and gearing up for the 2015-2016 skating 
season.  We also need to focus on a Fall Newsletter in October. 
 
We have rebuilt the Village’s website, www.sisterbaywi.gov  some kinks still need to be worked out technically, and we await the 
County IT department to be able to complete those (issues with our internal server).  
 
 
Code Violations: Dogs in Waterfront Park were a major issue for Law Enforcement at Marinafest. 

 
 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

 
 
 
 

87

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


88



89



90



91



Sister Bay & Liberty Grove Fire Board Meeting 
August 18, 2015 

 
The meeting was called to order August 18, 2015 at 4:29 pm by Lou Covotsos 
 
Roll Call: Louis Covotsos, Scott Baker, Nancy Goss, Pat Duffy  
 
In attendance Chris Hecht & Willard Randall 
 
A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to approve the agenda, seconded by Nancy Goss. Motion passed 
with no discussion. 
 
A motion was made by Scott Backer to approve the minutes of the previous meeting, seconded by 
Nancy Goss. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 
Public input: None 
 
Start of closed session. 
Return to open session. 
Roll Call: Louis Covotsos, Scott Baker, Nancy Goss, Pat Duffy  
 
A motion was made by Nancy Goss to bring to the town and village board a proposal to increase the 
Chief’s salary by $7,500.00 a year for the next 5 years, seconded by Scott Backer. The board 
pointed out the excellent job done by Chris. The Chief’s salary should be reviewed when a new chief 
is put in place. Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Discussion Items: 

 Chief’s Report 
o The Chief passed out a count of calls. We are on track to be ahead of prior year calls. 
o Engine 8 will be going to Red Power for repairs. The new tender will be moved to the 

Ellison Bay station and engine 6 will be move to the Sister Bay Station. 
o Fall Fest is September 5th and 6th. We will be participating on the 5th and to lesser 

extent on the 6th. 
o The new extrication equipment is in Milwaukee. We hope to have here and on display 

by fall fest and installed the next week. The extraction equipment was purchased by the 
SBLGFFA for $60,000. 

o We have attended a meeting on the new state supplied software to report fire calls. The 
state has purchased a very basic new program for reporting. We have a conference call 
scheduled to see if the new software can provide all of the reports we require.  

 

 Clerk/Treasurer Report 
o A list of calls since the last meeting was passed out and discussed. 
o A list of checks was passed out. 
o The 2015 budget to date report was passed out.   
o A motion was made by Nancy Gross to approve the treasurers’ report, seconded by 

Scott Backer. Motion passed with no discussion 
 

92



 Approval of Chief 
o The fire department held an election for Chief and SLBGFFA offices. Chris Hecht was 

elected as chief.  
o A motion was made by Nancy Goss to approve Chris Hecht as Fire Chief, seconded by 

Scott Backer. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 

 Budget 
o The chief presented a preliminary budget to the fire board with a 2.51% increase.  
o The budget needs to be updated with the increase in the chief pay. 
o Insurance costs are greater because of the new radio system. It should be reduced next 

year when the ownership of the equipment becomes the property of the county. 
o Capital improvement budget needs to be done 2 years in advance. We will have to add a 

Brush Truck for delivery in 2017. 
o The capital budget needs to be updated for station maintenance. (The Sister Bay station 

is having ice damming problems. Maintenance cost of the south station is split between 
the village and county with the county paying 20%.)  

o Computer costs include software, internet cost, support and repair. 
o New firefighters and new first responders’ amount was not changed last year and was 

decreased the previous year. 
o Grant funding expense is a repayment of grant money used in previous years. 
o A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to bring the 2016 proposed fire department 

budget to respective municipalities with the $8,905.00 or 2.51% plus the additional 
compensation amount of $7,500. Seconded by Nancy Goss.  Motion passed. 

 

 Fire District  
o No discussion 

 

 Set date for Next Meeting 
o September 28, 2015 8:00 am 

  
 A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to Adjourn, seconded by Pat Duffy. Motion passed with no 
discussion 
 
Submitted By  
Bill Randall 
Fire Department Clerk 
 

93



94



95



96



97



PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY PERFORMANCE PAVILION – 2364 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The September 2, 2015 meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was called 6 
to order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 2:02 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and 9 
Scott Baker.   10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Facilities Manager Steve Mann, 12 
Marketing Director Jason Polecheck and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz.  13 
 14 
Others:  Britt Maltby, Ron Kane, Jeff Bakke, and one other individual.  15 
 16 
Approval of Agenda: 17 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the September 18 
2, 2015 meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 19 
ayes. 20 
   21 
Approval of minutes as published: 22 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Clove that the minutes for the July 1, 23 
2015 meeting of the Parks, Properties & Street Committee be approved as presented. 24 
Motion carried – All ayes. 25 
 26 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 27 
Lienau noted that a Wayfinding Study meeting schedule which had been received from 28 
Living Lab was included in the meeting packets.  29 
 30 
Britt Maltby indicated that her children would like to be able to utilize the skateboarding 31 
equipment, but it is still in storage. It is her understanding that volunteers are needed to 32 
help with the installation and tear-down process, and she would be willing to try to recruit 33 
people to help with those projects. The Committee members thanked Maltby for stepping 34 
forward and suggested that she contact Mann to discuss logistics. This matter will be fully 35 
addressed at a future Parks Committee Meeting. 36 
 37 
Jackson noted that the following correspondence had been received: 38 

 A letter from Don Howard who resides at 2536 Fieldcrest Lane. Howard requests 39 
that prior to winter a load of quarry wash be added to Fieldcrest Lane. 40 

 41 

 A letter from Bruce Scher of 10667 Mill Lane. In that letter Scher asks that the Fall 42 
Fest helicopter landing site be relocated as he lives behind the Fire Department, 43 
and the noise, vibration and taking off/landing is “unbearable”. He also requests 44 
that the proposed snowmobile route be changed as snowmobile traffic will be 45 
disruptive to people who are staying at Pheasant Park and Woodcrest 46 
Condominiums. The access road in that area is clearly marked at both ends with 47 
signs which state, “No Motorized Vehicles, Foot Traffic Only”, and Scher believes 48 

98



Minutes for the September 2, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 2 - 

an extremely dangerous situation is being created. 1 
 2 

 A letter from Guy Theune of the Mariner’s Pointe Condominium Owner’s 3 
Association. In that letter Theune requests that a “No Outlet” sign be installed on 4 
Mariners Pointe Drive, immediately north of the intersection of Mariners Pointe 5 
Drive and Sunnyside Road.   6 

 7 
Jackson pointed out that the Ice Rink Manager, Joe Baldarotta will be inducted into the 8 
Wisconsin Hockey Hall of Fame on September 12, 2015, and all the Committee members 9 
congratulated him on that accomplishment. 10 
 11 
Business Items: 12 
Item No. 1. Reconsider a tabled item from the May Parks Committee Meeting: Discussion 13 
on a proposed snowmobile route for the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile Club; Consider 14 
a motion for action if necessary: 15 
A letter from the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile Club and a proposed snowmobile route 16 
map were included in the meeting packets and the Committee members jointly reviewed 17 
those documents. Jackson noted that the Village purchased the land which is commonly 18 
referred to as the Braun Property with 6(f) conversion funds, and if access to that property 19 
is denied a number of logistical issues will arise. During discussion several of the 20 
committee members voiced concerns about the fact that snowmobilers may be tempted to 21 
take their snowmobiles on the Sledding Hill if the proposed route is approved. It was the 22 
consensus that a sign which states “No Snowmobiling” should be erected in that location 23 
prior to the time that the snow flies.  24 
 25 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the Snowmobile Route Map which 26 
was reviewed at this meeting is approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 27 
 28 
Item No. 2. Discussion with Jeff Bakke, Dog Park Organizer, on fundraising and use; 29 
Consider a motion for action if necessary: 30 
Jackson pointed out that to date $2,947.15 has been donated for Dog Park improvements, 31 
and the Committee members praised the members of the Dog Park Group for their efforts. 32 
Jeff Bakke, who is the head of the Dog Park Group, stated that the majority of the people 33 
who utilize the Dog Park would like to have access to a safe source of drinking water for 34 
their dogs. Bakke believes the easiest way to accomplish this would be to tap into the 35 
water main which runs past the Dog Park. At some point they would also like to see the 36 
Dog Park shelter enlarged so that more people can utilize it.  37 
 38 
Mann stated that any water supply line which is installed at the Dog Park would have to be 39 
seasonal as freezing issues will arise. 40 
 41 
Doersching requested that Bakke meet with her to discuss activities she has seen 42 
conducted at other Dog Parks, and he responded that he would be happy to do that. 43 
 44 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that Steve Mann shall see that a water 45 
line is installed at the Dog Park, but before that line is actually installed Jeff Bakke shall be 46 
consulted to ensure that the needs of the Dog Park patrons will be satisfied. Motion carried 47 
– All ayes. 48 
 49 

99



Minutes for the September 2, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 3 - 

A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that as soon as the Dog Park Group 1 
raises enough funds to cover improvements to the Dog Park Shelter, Steve Mann shall see 2 
that those improvements are made. Motion carried – All ayes. 3 
 4 
Item No. 3. Discussion on a change order for the Sister Bay Beach Project for a paver 5 
sidewalk connection from Bay Shore Drive to the swim dock; Consider a motion for 6 
action if necessary:  7 
The suggestion has been made that a brick paver sidewalk be installed around the new 8 
beach, but it will cost approximately $5,000 more to install that type of amenity. A 9 
diagram depicting where the proposed sidewalk will be located was included in the 10 
meeting packets, and during discussion the Committee members indicated that they like 11 
the paver sidewalk very much, but would like to see the pavers extended to the Boathouse 12 
Property. They would also like to see conduit installed in that area. If the sidewalk is 13 
extended it could cost approximately $20,000 more. It was the consensus that the bricks 14 
from the existing parking lot in Waterfront Park shall be utilized for the extension.  15 
 16 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Doersching that the Parks Committee 17 
approves of installation of the brick paver sidewalk depicted on the diagram which was 18 
included in the meeting packets, on the condition that the pavers shall be extended to the 19 
Boathouse Property, and conduit shall be installed along the entire new sidewalk route. 20 
Motion carried.   21 
 22 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding safety items and uniforms for 2015 and 2016; Consider 23 
a motion for action if necessary: 24 
OSHA is requiring that the Village’s Safety Plan be updated, and, to that end, employees 25 
from Advanced Safety Technology have been meeting with Mann and Steve Jacobson. In 26 
accord with the provisions of the plan updates, all workers, including emergency 27 
responders, who are exposed either to traffic or work vehicles and construction equipment 28 
within the right-of-way, must wear high-visibility safety apparel which meets the 29 
Performance Class 3 requirements of the ANSI/ISEA 107-2004 publication entitled, 30 
“American National Standard for High-Visibility Safety Apparel and Headwear”. That 31 
safety apparel must be labeled as meeting the ANSI 107-2004 standard performance for 32 
Class 2 or 3 risk exposure. The required apparel will cost approximately $2,000.  33 
 34 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Clove that lime green Class 3 high-35 
visibility safety apparel shall be purchased for all Parks Department personnel as well as the 36 
Village Administrator this year, but budgetary constraints must be satisfied. Motion carried 37 
– All ayes.     38 
 39 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding the 2016 Parks Budget and the 2016 TKH Budget; 40 
Consider a motion for action if necessary: 41 
A draft of the proposed 2016 budgets for the TKH Ice Rink and the Parks Department were 42 
included in the meeting packets, and the Committee members jointly reviewed that 43 
documentation.  44 
 45 

TKH Budget 46 
As per Personnel Committee and Village Board action last year, it is quite possible that 47 
Nicole Krauel, the current Marina Manager, and Jason Polecheck, the Marketing Director, 48 
will be working at the ice rink this winter. The proposed TKH budget reflects those 49 

100



Minutes for the September 2, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 4 - 

changes. 1 
 2 
Joe Baldarotta, the Ice Rink Manager, was present and pointed out that the ice rink slab has 3 
cracked, and, therefore, it is very difficult to maintain ice when it gets warmer. It was the 4 
consensus that it would be a good idea to establish a CIP for the Ice Rink. A referral will be 5 
made to the Finance Committee.  6 
 7 
Baldarotta noted that he would like to establish hockey programs up here, and is working 8 
with the members of the Wisconsin Amateur Hockey Association on that issue. There will 9 
be no costs associated with the establishment of the hockey programs.     10 
 11 

Parks and Streets Budget 12 
Doersching requested that a few hundred dollars be appropriated for a banner which 13 
advertises next year’s YMCA programming, and it was the consensus that there is a 14 
sufficient amount of money included in the proposed YMCA Program Costs line item. 15 
Doersching also expressed dissatisfaction with the 2015 fee schedule for YMCA 16 
programming.  17 
 18 
Jackson noted that the proposed CIP for the Parks Department includes $13,000 for a new 19 
Gator as well as $2,000 for a 9,000 watt generator and a harness for it.  20 
 21 
Lienau offered to donate a generator to the Parks Department, and Mann gratefully 22 
accepted that donation. He will pick it up ASAP. 23 
 24 
Jackson pointed out that the Village’s CIP includes funding for street resurfacing and 25 
stormwater work, various parks projects, vehicle replacement and wayfinding signage. A 26 
list of roads in need of repairs was included in the meeting packets. 27 
 28 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that the Parks Committee approves 29 
of the proposed budget for the Parks Department and the TKH Ice Rink, as well as the 30 
2016 Capital Improvement Plan which were reviewed at this meeting. Motion carried – All 31 
ayes. 32 
 33 
Item No. 6. Report from staff on parks, properties and streets activities: 34 
Jackson gave the following oral report: 35 

 Dick Horbinski informed him that Village officials had agreed to resurface 36 
Cherrywood Lane as well as the other streets within his subdivision. Apparently an 37 
escrow fund was established for that purpose. Lienau noted that it was his 38 
understanding that only Cherrywood Lane was to be resurfaced. 39 

 40 
Mann gave the following oral report: 41 

 Joe Felhofer has returned to work after having back surgery and is now allowed to 42 
do “light duty” work. 43 

 Nearly all of the paint on the Marina Building has been touched up. 44 

 Bill Becker reported that someone attempted to break into the American Legion’s 45 
gun safe at the Village Hall. Becker is looking into several different options for 46 
replacement of the gun safe, and will be getting back to Mann within a few days. 47 
He will keep the Committee members advised of the status of this issue. 48 

 49 

101



Minutes for the September 2, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Parks\2015\2015_09\090215 PPS Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 9/2/2015; Last Printed: 9/11/2015 12:42 PM 

- 5 - 

Lienau noted that he has received a number of complaints that vehicles are speeding on 1 
Country Walk Drive. He has also heard that since the detour route was established it is 2 
very difficult for pedestrians to safely cross Country Walk Drive. It was the consensus that 3 
Mann and Jackson shall view the area in question and contact D.O.T. officials to see if 4 
they would be willing to see that crosswalks are painted on Country Walk Drive.  5 
 6 
Item No. 7. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 7 
committee, official or employee: 8 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at a future meeting of the 9 
Parks Committee: 10 

 The Finance Committee shall be asked to consider adding a CIP for Ice Rink 11 
improvements. 12 

 Prior to the winter months Mann shall see that the “No Motorized Vehicles, Foot 13 
Traffic Only” signs are removed from the access road between Pheasant Park and 14 
Woodcrest Condominiums.   15 

 Discussion shall take place regarding seasonal installation/removal of the skatepark 16 
equipment at a future Parks Committee Meeting. 17 

 18 
Adjournment: 19 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Parks 20 
Committee at 4:12 P.M.  21 
 22 
Motion carried – All ayes.  23 
 24 
Respectfully submitted,  25 

 26 
Janal Suppanz,  27 
Assistant Administrator 28 

102



PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2015 2 

SMALL MEETING ROOM – SISTER BAY FIRE STATION 3 

2258 MILL ROAD, SISTER BAY, WI 4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 

 6 

The September 3, 2015 meeting of the Personnel Committee was called to order by 7 
Committee Chair Pat Duffy at 11:34 A.M. 8 
 9 
Present:  Committee Chair Pat Duffy and Committee members Kathy Enquist and Nora 10 
Zacek.   11 
 12 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal 13 
Suppanz.  14 
 15 
Approval of Agenda: 16 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Enquist that the Agenda for the September 3, 17 
2015 meeting of the Personnel Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All 18 
ayes. 19 
   20 
Approval of minutes as published: 21 
A motion was made by Enquist, seconded by Zacek that the minutes for the April 9, 2015 22 
meeting of the Personnel Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 
 24 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 25 
Duffy noted that no new correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone 26 
wished to address a non-agenda item. No one responded.  27 
 28 
Business Items: 29 
Item No. 1. Discussion with a representative of the McClone Agency concerning 2016 30 
Health Insurance and other employee benefits; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 31 
Duffy introduced Sarah-Beth Jansen, a representative of the McClone Agency. 32 
 33 
Jackson noted that a considerable amount of dialogue has already taken place regarding 34 
“defined benefit” vs. “defined contribution” health plans, and asked if it would be possible 35 
for the Village to pay a designated amount of money for health insurance coverage per 36 
employee. 37 
 38 
Jansen replied that that would be possible, but the Village must pay at least 50% of the 39 
lowest cost single premium. She did caution that older employees do not benefit from such 40 
an arrangement, so most employers pay a straight across-the-board percentage rate of 41 
employees’ health insurance costs.   42 
 43 
A packet of information regarding health insurance premiums and HRA/HSA premiums as 44 
well as long and short term disability premiums was included in the meeting packets, and 45 
the Committee members jointly reviewed all of those documents.   46 
 47 
 48 

103



Minutes for the September 3, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 2 - 

Jansen explained that the Village’s transitional relief for health insurance premiums will 1 
expire on September 30, 2017. For the most part the government said that if employers 2 
switch from their current health insurance plans they must obtain community rated health 3 
plans.  Policies are either community rated or experience rated, and it is Jansen’s opinion 4 
that obtaining a community rated policy would not be a good thing for the Village at this 5 
time. The Village’s current health care provider is United Health Care, and exact premium 6 
increases should be known by the end of September. The only other plan that Jansen might 7 
consider for the Village would be the League of Municipalities plan through WEA Trust, 8 
which is a self-funded group, but it is quite likely that the rates for that company would be 9 
higher than UHC. If a quote is requested from WEA Trust all employees would have to 10 
complete health history questionaires. At the present time the in-network deductible for 11 
single plan members is $2,850 for persons with single coverage and $5,700 for persons 12 
with family coverage. Duffy asked if any municipalities are providing high deductible 13 
health insurance coverage, and Jansen responded that most municipalities do not. She also 14 
stated that she would not recommend making any drastic changes until there is a major 15 
increase in premiums.  16 
 17 
Discussion took place regarding HRA’s, HSA’s and FSA’s, and Jansen and Jackson 18 
explained how each of those programs are administered. At the present time the Village 19 
pays 85% of health insurance premiums for employees and 100% of their HRA premiums. 20 
Jansen noted that if the Village moves from an HRA to an HSA cost savings would 21 
probably be realized, and could result in employees becoming well-informed health care 22 
consumers. Under the circumstances, and because of the high utilization rates the Village 23 
has experienced, she would suggest that the Village switch to an HSA. She also noted that 24 
she does not believe any cost savings would be realized by eliminating the FSA program. 25 
Jackson suggested that if the Village decides to switch to an HSA he would recommend 26 
that the funding for that program be “front-loaded” at the very beginning of program 27 
initiation.      28 
 29 
Discussion also took place regarding short term disability vs. long term disability coverage, 30 
and Jansen stated that she would suggest that the Village provide long term disability 31 
coverage. It was the consensus that coverage which will become effective January 1, 2016 32 
shall be obtained through The Standard.    33 
 34 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Enquist that the recommendation is made to 35 
the Village Board that based upon the rate quote from The Standard which was reviewed 36 
at this meeting, the Village shall transition from providing short-term disability insurance 37 
coverage for its employees to long-term disability insurance coverage effective January 1, 38 
2016. Motion carried – All ayes. 39 
 40 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the recommendation is made to the 41 
Village Board that the Village shall transition from an HRA to an HSA as of December 1, 42 
2015, but the contribution rate for the HSA shall be determined at a later date. Motion 43 
carried – All ayes. 44 
 45 
Item No. 2. Update on the search for a new Finance Director: 46 
Jackson noted that a second round of Finance Director job notices has been distributed to 47 
several different agencies. To date two applications have been received and one of them 48 
does look promising, but that individual currently works for another municipality and is 49 

104



Minutes for the September 3, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 3 - 

receiving a salary of approximately $100,000. The salary the Village is proposing for the 1 
new Finance Director is $50,000. Jackson is hopeful that more applications will come in, 2 
but he will contact the individual who looks promising to see if he would be interested in 3 
coming in for an interview. He also noted that he has seen a number of job 4 
announcements for Finance Directors in other municipalities as well as in the private 5 
sector.  6 
 7 
Duffy suggested that the job title mentioned in the previously mentioned job 8 
announcement be changed to “Finance Supervisor” so that more people might believe 9 
they are qualified for the job which is open, and it was the consensus that this shall occur.  10 
 11 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to convene into Executive Session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 12 
§19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee benefits: 13 
At 1:02 P.M. a motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the Personnel 14 
Committee convene into Executive Session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss 15 
personnel and employee benefits. A roll call vote was taken on that motion and the 16 
Committee members voted in the following fashion: 17 
 18 
             Duffy – Aye;     Enquist – Aye;  Zacek – Aye. 19 
 20 
Motion carried. 21 
 22 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session: 23 
At 2:10 P.M. a motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Enquist that the Personnel 24 
Committee reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken and the 25 
Committee members voted in the following fashion: 26 
 27 

Duffy – Aye;   Enquist – Aye;  Zacek – Aye. 28 
 29 
Motion carried. 30 
 31 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 32 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Enquist that the Personnel Committee has 33 
reviewed a request from an employee, and is now recommending that the Village’s 34 
Personnel Handbook be amended in such fashion that it states that the Village will not 35 
provide health insurance coverage for anyone who is eligible for Medicare coverage. 36 
Motion carried – All ayes.  37 
 38 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the recommendation is made to the 39 
Village Board that effective January 1, 2016 a full-time Marina Manager position be 40 
reinstated. 41 
 42 
Item No. 6. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee or 43 
Commission: 44 
It was the consensus that the Village Board shall be informed that the Personnel Committee 45 
would like to see formal action taken on finding a replacement for the Utilities Director 46 
ASAP.   47 
 48 
 49 

105



Minutes for the September 3, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 4 - 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Enquist, seconded by Zacek to adjourn the meeting of the 2 
Personnel Committee at 2:18 P.M.  Motion carried – All ayes.  3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Assistant Administrator 8 

106



SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, JULY 14, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION COORDINATOR’S OFFICE 3 

10668 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE   4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 

 6 

The July 14, 2015 meeting of the Sister Bay Advancement Association Board of Directors 7 
was called to order by President Drew Bickford at 5:15 P.M.    8 
 9 
Present:   Drew Bickford, Heidi Hitzeman, Tonya Crowell, Casey St. Henry, Ron Kane, 10 
Denise Bhirdo, Larry Gajda, James Larsen, Windy Bittorf and Nora Zacek. 11 
 12 
Excused:  Jeannie Hoffman and Jessica Grasse.  13 
 14 
Staff Member:   Paige Funkhouser, SBAA Coordinator. 15 
 16 
Business Items: 17 
Bickford noted that the SBAA Board of Directors Meeting which had been scheduled for 18 
Thursday, July 9, 2015 was cancelled due to lack of a quorum, but there was a need to 19 
address some issues in a timely fashion, and, therefore, tonight’s meeting was being 20 
conducted. 21 
  22 
Item No. 1.  Approval of the Agenda: 23 
A motion was made by Hitzeman, seconded by Kane, that the Agenda for the July 14, 24 
2015 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – 25 
All ayes. 26 
 27 
Item No. 3.  Discussion regarding festivals and events: 28 
A. “Midwest Sunsplash”: 29 
“Midwest Sunsplash” will be conducted in the Village on August 7 and 8, 2015. The SBAA 30 
will be selling beer, wine and hard cider at that event, and I.D. wristbands and tokens will 31 
be utilized. Funkhouser presented a tentative bartender schedule, and the Board members 32 
jointly reviewed that document. There is a need for people to help with set-up and tear-33 
down, and Gajda and Larsen volunteered to help with those tasks. Discussion took place 34 
regarding utilization of last year’s Fall Fest mugs at the beer tent, and it was the consensus 35 
that they shall be provided to festival attendees free of charge.  36 
 37 
B. Marina Fest: 38 
There was some confusion as to whether or not the SBAA would be sponsoring a Concert 39 
In The Park on the Sunday of Marina Fest, and Funkhouser asked that the Board members 40 
provide her with more direction. If a concert is scheduled the music will have to end by 41 
8:00 P.M. as there will be a fireworks show. Larsen indicated that Husby’s has booked 42 
“Whiskey Ditch” to perform from 6:00 P.M. to 9:00 P.M. on Sunday, September 6, 2015, 43 
and offered to allow the SBAA to take over that booking as he is having a hard time finding 44 
enough people to work. 45 
 46 
  47 
It was the consensus that Funkhouser shall see that “Whiskey Ditch” is booked for a 48 

107



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes – July 14, 2015 

 

- 2 - 

Concert In The Park from 6:30 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. on Sunday, September 6, 2015.  1 
 2 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding renewal of the SBAA’s Office Lease: 3 
The SBAA’s Office Lease will expire on October 1, 2015. Kurt Wiltse informed Funkhouser 4 
that he probably would have to increase the rent by $50 per month. Discussion took place 5 
regarding this issue, and it was the consensus that the SBAA would be willing to pay the 6 
increased rent on the condition that Wiltse sees that recycling services are provided.    7 
 8 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding the future of “Sip ‘N Savor/Paddlefest”: 9 
This year “Sip ‘N Savor” was partially rained out, and profits which were realized as a 10 
result of conducting that event were minimal. It is very difficult to get volunteers to work at 11 
“Sip ‘N Savor”, and there is also a possibility that a “wine event” will be conducted in Egg 12 
Harbor early in “the season”. On the other hand, “Paddlefest” was quite successful. 13 
Lengthy discussion took place regarding this issue, and it was eventually the consensus that 14 
“Paddlefest” should be continued but expanded to include more silent sports activities and 15 
paddleboard races, as well as some fun and silly adult games/races. The suggestion was 16 
also made that a D.J. be booked.   17 
 18 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Bickford that “Sip ‘N Savor” shall be 19 
discontinued, but the SBAA should concentrate on expanding “Paddlefest” to include more 20 
silent sports activities. That event shall still be conducted during the second weekend in 21 
June. Motion carried – All ayes.  22 
 23 
Adjournment: 24 
A motion was made by Hitzeman, seconded by Gajda to adjourn the meeting of the SBAA 25 
Board of Directors at 5:55 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 26 
 27 
Respectfully submitted, 28 

 29 
Janal Suppanz, Secretary 30 

108



SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 6, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION COORDINATOR’S OFFICE 3 

10668 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE   4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 

 6 

The August 6, 2015 meeting of the Sister Bay Advancement Association Board of Directors 7 
was called to order by President Drew Bickford at 8:05 A.M.    8 
 9 
Present:   Drew Bickford, Larry Gajda, Ron Kane, Denise Bhirdo, Windy Bittorf, Heidi 10 
Hitzeman and Nora Zacek. 11 
 12 
Excused:  Jeannie Hoffman and Jessica Grasse.  13 
 14 
Absent:  James Larsen, Tonya Crowell and Casey St. Henry. 15 
 16 
Staff Members:   Paige Funkhouser, SBAA Coordinator, and Janal Suppanz, Secretary. 17 
 18 
Business Items: 19 
Item No. 1.  Approval of the Agenda: 20 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Hitzeman, that the Agenda for the August 6, 21 
2015 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – 22 
All ayes. 23 
 24 
Item No. 2.  Approval of minutes: 25 
Suppanz indicated that due to scheduling conflicts she was unable to attend the July 14, 26 
2015 SBAA Meeting. She did not have an opportunity to transcribe the minutes for that 27 
meeting yet, and, therefore, they will be included in the packets for the next Board 28 
Meeting. 29 
 30 
Item No. 3.  Coordinator’s Report: 31 
Funkhouser was not able to prepare her Coordinator’s Report as she was having computer 32 
issues. She has been very busy with preparations for the “Festival of the Arts” and 33 
“Midwest Sunsplash”. Unfortunately some of the “goats on poles” were stolen, so to 34 
prevent further thefts they have all been taken down. “The whole herd” will be auctioned 35 
off at the Festival of the Arts. The number of incoming telephone calls at the Visitor Center 36 
has nearly doubled since last year, and brochure racks are having to be refilled on a 37 
regular basis. The menu mailbox unit which was downtown was damaged during Sunday’s 38 
storm. The necessary repairs will be made ASAP. A number of positive comments have 39 
been heard about the fact that menus for area restaurants are easily accessible. As a result 40 
of the storm an impromptu movie in the park session was conducted on Sunday evening.   41 
 42 
Item No. 4. Financial Report from the Treasurer, Windy Bittorf: 43 
Last night the SBAA’s popcorn machine “blew up”. Donations of $158 were received to 44 
cover replacement costs. Bittorf and Suppanz have not had an opportunity to do the 45 
monthly bookwork yet, so financial reports were not included in the meeting packets.  46 
 47 
 48 

109



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  August 6, 2015 

- 2 - 

Item No. 5. Discussion Regarding Festivals and Events: 1 
1.  Movies/Concerts in the Park – Band for Labor Day Sunday: 2 

The movies in the park have been well received. “Whiskey Ditch” will be 3 
performing in the Performance Pavilion from 6:30 P.M. to 8:30 P.M. on the Sunday 4 
of Labor Day weekend.  5 
 6 

2.  Door County Festival of the Arts: 7 
Everything is “pretty well set” for the Door County Festival of the Arts.  8 
 9 

3. “Midwest Sunsplash”: 10 
 Orders have been placed for beer and wine as well as water and soda to be served 11 
at “Midwest Sunsplash”, and a sufficient number of people have volunteered to 12 
tend bar. As of Tuesday 150 advance tickets were sold for that event. It is 13 
Funkhouser’s understanding that an informational letter as well as one free ticket 14 
for “Midwest Sunsplash” were mailed to all Village taxpayers. Some of the Board 15 
members indicated that they did not receive such a letter, and Funkhouser 16 
responded that she would advise the employees in the Village Office of that fact. 17 
There will be licensed bartenders on site at all times. 18 

 19 
4.   Fall Fest – Food Vendors; Use of the Village’s Lot on N. Bay Shore Drive 20 

(Commonly referred to as “the Braun Property”): 21 
During the winter months the members of the SBAA Board of Directors decided 22 
that non-competing food vendors should be allowed to participate in Fall Fest, but 23 
for-profit organizations from outside the area would be required to pay higher 24 
vendor fees.  25 
 26 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Zacek that no more than four 27 
additional food vendors from outside Sister Bay shall be allowed to participate in 28 
this year’s Fall Fest. The fee each of those vendors will be charged is $500.00. 29 
Motion carried – All ayes. 30 
 31 
Funkhouser asked the Village Administrator if the SBAA would be able to use the 32 
Braun lot for Fall Fest, and she was informed that before permission was granted a 33 
referral would have to be made to the Parks Committee as well as the Plan 34 
Commission.  35 

  36 
Item No. 6. Discussion Items: 37 

1.  Website: 38 
Funkhouser believes the SBAA’s website needs a “face-lift” and should become 39 
“mobile optimized”. This is an issue which will be addressed when the 2016 40 
budget is drafted.  41 

 42 
2.   Office Lease: 43 

Kurt Wiltse informed Funkhouser that he and his family members have decided that 44 
the rent for the SBAA Office should not be increased in 2016, but recycling services 45 
will not be provided or paid for by the Wiltse family. It was the consensus that the 46 
Office Lease should be renewed.  47 
 48 

110



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  August 6, 2015 

- 3 - 

The old Visitor Center should be accessible during 2016, but a number of issues 1 
will have to be addressed before a final decision is made regarding the preferred 2 
Visitor Center location.   3 
 4 

3.   Photography of “the new Sister Bay” and amenities: 5 
Funkhouser believes it would be wise to hire a photographer to take photos of  6 
“the new Sister Bay” once all the work has been completed, and the Board 7 
members agreed. It was the consensus that this project shall also be addressed 8 
when work is done on the 2016 budget.  9 

 10 
4.   Formal communications between the Village and the SBAA: 11 

It was the consensus that whenever any issues arise which must be called to the 12 
attention of Village officials, Zacek, who is the Village’s Liaison, shall be contacted. 13 

 14 
5.   SBAA participation in the Village’s Marketing Committee: 15 

A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Gajda that since a concerted effort is 16 
being made to improve communications and utilize the SBAA’s Liaison to the fullest 17 
extent, the SBAA Board of Directors is recommending that the Village President 18 
amend the Board and Committee By-Laws in such fashion that a representative of 19 
the SBAA no longer sits on the Village’s Marketing Committee. Motion carried with 20 
Zacek abstaining. 21 

 22 
6.   SBAA participation in Village events: 23 

No formal action was taken regarding this agenda item. 24 
 25 

Item No. 10. Update on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project: 26 
Work is actually proceeding ahead of schedule on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction 27 
Project. Since asphalt plant closure deadlines will come into play, the contractor who is 28 
doing the work on that project recently approached Village officials and asked that he be 29 
allowed to modify his construction schedule.  30 
 31 
Item No. 11. Update on the Waterfront Park Construction Project: 32 
Work is progressing on the recycled paver sidewalk which will constructed by the beach. 33 
In an attempt to eliminate mud and prevent damage to freshly seeded areas, wood chips 34 
have been installed in Waterfront Park.   35 
 36 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to convene into closed session to discuss personnel: 37 
At 9:34 A.M. a motion was made by Bickford, seconded by Kane that the SBAA Board of 38 
Directors convene into closed session to discuss personnel. A roll call vote was taken on 39 
that motion and the Board members voted in the following fashion: 40 
 41 

Bickford – Aye; Hoffman – Aye; Gajda – Aye; Kane – Aye; Bhirdo – Aye; 42 
Bittorf – Aye; Hitzeman – Aye; Zacek - Aye. 43 

    44 
Motion carried. 45 
 46 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session: 47 
At 9:56 A.M. a motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Zacek that the Board reconvene 48 
into Open Session. A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the Board members again 49 

111



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  August 6, 2015 

- 4 - 

voted in the following fashion: 1 
 2 

Bickford – Aye; Hoffman – Aye; Gajda – Aye; Kane – Aye; Bhirdo – Aye; 3 
Bittorf – Aye; Hitzeman – Aye; Zacek - Aye. 4 

 5 
Motion carried. 6 
 7 
Item No. 9. Consider a motion to take action, if required:  8 
No formal action was taken. 9 
 10 
The next meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors will be conducted on Thursday, 11 
September 10, 2015 at 8:00 A.M. 12 
 13 
Adjournment: 14 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Kane to adjourn the meeting of the SBAA 15 
Board of Directors at 10:04 A.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 16 
 17 
Respectfully submitted, 18 

 19 
Janal Suppanz, Secretary 20 

112



SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION COORDINATOR’S OFFICE 3 

10668 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE   4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 

 6 

The September 10, 2015 meeting of the Sister Bay Advancement Association Board of 7 
Directors was called to order by President Drew Bickford at 8:02 A.M.    8 
 9 
Present:   Drew Bickford, Ron Kane, Denise Bhirdo, Windy Bittorf, Heidi Hitzeman, Jessica 10 
Grasse, Nora Zacek, Tonya Crowell and Casey St. Henry. 11 
 12 
Excused:  James Larsen, Larry Gajda and Jeannie Hoffman    13 
 14 
Staff Members:   Paige Funkhouser, SBAA Coordinator, and Janal Suppanz, Secretary. 15 
 16 
Business Items: 17 
Item No. 1.  Approval of the Agenda: 18 
Kane indicated that he would like to see “Discussion Regarding Midwest Sunsplash” added 19 
to the Agenda, and Funkhouser indicated that she would like to see “Discussion Regarding 20 
The Fall Dinner” added to the Agenda. 21 
 22 
A motion was made by Kane, seconded by Grasse, that the Agenda for the September 10, 23 
2015 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as amended. Motion carried – 24 
All ayes. 25 
 26 
Item No. 2.  Approval of minutes: 27 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Hitzeman, that the minutes for the July 14, 28 
2015 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – 29 
All ayes. 30 
 31 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Hitzeman, that the minutes for the August 6, 32 
2015 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – 33 
All ayes. 34 
 35 
Item No. 3. Financial Report: 36 
Financial reports were included in the meeting packets and the Board members jointly 37 
reviewed those documents. 38 
 39 
A motion was made by Kane, seconded by Bhirdo that the financial reports which were 40 
reviewed at this meeting be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 41 
 42 
Item No. 4.  Coordinator’s Report: 43 
A copy of Funkhouser’s Coordinator’s Report was included in the meeting packets, and the 44 
Board members jointly reviewed that document. Funkhouser noted that $2,970.00 was 45 
raised as a result of auctioning off the goats at the Festival of the Arts, but $550 was paid 46 
out to the two artists who specifically created goats for the auction. Foot traffic is down at 47 
the Visitor Center but telephone calls are up considerably.    48 

113



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  September 10, 2015 

- 2 - 

Funkhouser mentions a number of issues related to Fall Fest in her report, but it was the 1 
consensus that the majority of those issues shall be addressed at the upcoming Fall Fest 2 
Meeting. Funkhouser did read a letter which had been received from Bruce Scher aloud. In 3 
his letter Scher indicates that the noise created by the helicopter landing and taking off 4 
during Fall Fest was unbearable. The Parks Committee has approved the proposed location 5 
for the helicopter rides, but recommended that an informational letter be sent to the 6 
surrounding property owners at least ten days prior to Fall Fest. It was the consensus that 7 
Funkhouser shall send a letter to Mr. Scher informing him that it is too late to relocate the 8 
helicopter rides this year, but his concerns will be taken into consideration when planning 9 
is done for next year’s Fall Fest.  10 
 11 
New Business:  12 
Item No. 5. Discussion Regarding Board Membership – Attendance and Participation: 13 
On a number of occasions quorum issues have arisen because Board members are quite 14 
busy and are unable to attend meetings. At the present time, in accord with the SBAA By-15 
Laws, the minimum number of Board members which is allowed is nine and the maximum 16 
is twelve. Bhirdo suggested that the SBAA’s By-Laws be revised to state that there shall be 17 
nine Board members with three alternates. It was the consensus that this issue shall be 18 
addressed at length at the next Board meeting. 19 
 20 
Item No. 6. Discussion Regarding The SBAA Survey Results: 21 
Funkhouser distributed the report which contains the SBAA Survey data tabulation results, 22 
and the Board members jointly reviewed that documentation.  All the data contained on 23 
the report will be taken into consideration when work is done on the 2016 budget. Several 24 
of the Board members indicated that there were only thirty-six responses received, and it 25 
was the consensus that the survey shall be distributed one more time. 26 
 27 
Item No. 7. 2016 Membership Drive: 28 
A draft of the 2016 Membership Application was included in the meeting packets. 29 
Funkhouser noted that at the present time Egg Harbor charges dues of $300.00; Fish Creek 30 
charges dues of $300,00, Ephraim charges dues of $295.00 and Baileys Harbor charges 31 
dues of $250.00. She is suggesting that dues for lodging establishments be increased to 32 
$295.00, that dues for all other businesses be increased to $250.00, and dues for second 33 
businesses be increased to $150.00. “Early bird” discounts of $25.00 per business category 34 
would still apply. 35 
 36 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Hitzeman that the SBAA’s membership dues 37 
for 2016 shall be increased to $295.00 for lodging establishments, $250.00 for all other 38 
businesses and $150.00 for second businesses. Motion carried – All ayes. 39 
 40 
Item No. 8. Fall Career Fair – UW Stout October 6 and 7, 2015: 41 
UW Stout’s Fall Career Fair will be conducted on October 6 and 7, 2015, and Funkhouser 42 
believes it would be beneficial for her and at least one other individual from the business 43 
community to attend the October 7, 2015 Career Fair sessions. Because UW Stout is quite 44 
some distance away she would like to stay overnight. All the related expenses of 45 
approximately $800.00 were covered by sponsorships last year, and she will make a 46 
concerted effort to get more sponsorships this year.  47 
 48 
 49 

114



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  September 10, 2015 

- 3 - 

A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Bickford that Paige Funkhouser shall attend 1 
the UW Stout Job Fair on October 7, 2015 and represent the SBAA at that event, but the 2 
related expenses shall not exceed $1,000.00. Motion carried – All ayes.   3 
 4 
Item No. 9. Village Funding for 2016: 5 
The SBAA’s annual funding request should be submitted to the Village on an annual basis. 6 
It was the consensus that the SBAA shall submit its funding request for 2016 and be 7 
prepared to make a presentation to the appropriate committee and/or Board in November 8 
of 2015.   9 
 10 
Item No. 10. Discussion Regarding Festivals and Events: 11 

    Fall Fest – Entertainment, Location For Food & Beverage Vendors, and Fees For 12 
2016: 13 
The Fall Fest organizational meeting has been scheduled for 5:30 P.M. on 14 
Wednesday, September 23, 2015. That meeting will be conducted at the SBAA 15 
Offices. 16 
 17 
Funkhouser noted that Randy Peterson, who provides children’s entertainment, has 18 
performed at Fall Fest for a number of years. “The Hillbilly Science Show” was 19 
booked for the Car Show and that act was very well received.  20 
 21 
A motion was made by St. Henry, seconded by Bhirdo that the cast of “The 22 
Hillbilly Science Show” shall be booked to perform on the Saturday of Fall Fest, 23 
2016. The maximum amount of money which shall be paid for that act is $735.00. 24 
Motion carried – All ayes. 25 
 26 
Discussion took place regarding whether or not new Fall Fest T-Shirts should be 27 
ordered, and it was the consensus that Bickford, Hitzeman and Funkhouser shall 28 
decide upon an appropriate design and color(s) for this year’s Fall Fest clothing, 29 
and order up to one gross of long sleeve and short sleeve Fall Fest themed T-Shirts.    30 
 31 
Funkhouser was contacted by a representative of a mobile app. company who 32 
wondered if the SBAA would be interested in creating such an app. for Fall Fest. It 33 
was the consensus that this issue shall be addressed when budget planning is done 34 
for next year.  35 
 36 

   SBAA Fall Dinner: 37 
This year’s SBAA Fall Dinner will be conducted on Thursday, October 22, 2015 or 38 
Thursday, October 29, 2015, and that event will be held at Al Johnson’s Swedish 39 
Restaurant. If Al’s is not available, Funkhouser shall make reservations at “J.J.’s”.  40 

 41 

 “Capture The Spirit”: 42 
No new “Capture The Spirit” activities will be conducted this year. Unfortunately 43 
The Family Centers of Door County have disbanded, so that organization will not 44 
be participating. 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 
   49 

115



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  September 10, 2015 

- 4 - 

 Film Fest 2016: 1 
It was the consensus that Film Fest has potential to grow and should be continued. 2 
Funkhouser will inform Chris Opper of the Board’s decision ASAP.  3 
 4 

At 9:37 A.M. Crowell indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting. 5 
 6 

 Concerts/Movies In The Park 2016: 7 
This year’s Concerts in the Park were all well received. Bacchus Lotus, Copper Box 8 
and Whiskey Ditch performed at those concerts. Concert sponsorship opportunities 9 
are mentioned on the membership application forms, but the suggestion has been 10 
made that a community-wide sponsorship drive also be conducted. It was the 11 
consensus that this issue shall be addressed when work is done on the 2016 12 
budget. 13 
 14 

 “Midwest Sunsplash”  15 
A “Midwest Sunsplash” follow-up meeting will be conducted on Monday, 16 
September 14, 2015 at 3:00 P.M. 17 
 18 

Old Business: 19 
Item No. 11. Bay Shore Drive Update: 20 
Work is progressing on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project and multiple detours 21 
are now in effect. Both lanes of traffic will be open in the downtown area on the 22 
weekends.   23 
 24 
Item No. 12. Waterfront Park Development Update: 25 
Most of the work is completed on the Beach Project. Plantings should be completed after 26 
Fall Fest. 27 
 28 
The next meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors will be conducted on Thursday, October 29 
1, 2015 at 8:00 A.M. 30 
 31 
Adjournment: 32 
A motion was made by Kane, seconded by Bhirdo to adjourn the meeting of the SBAA 33 
Board of Directors at 9:50 A.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 34 
 35 
Respectfully submitted, 36 

 37 
Janal Suppanz, Secretary 38 

116



117



118



119




